# DNV·GL

## **BIALY BOR AND DK WIND FARMS**

# **Environmental and Social Management Plan**

Bialy Bor Farma Wiatrowa Sp. Z O.O. / DK Farma Wiatrowa Sp. Z O.O.

Document No.: 10203693-ESZA-R-03 Issue: C, Status: Final Date: 18 September 2020



#### IMPORTANT NOTICE AND DISCLAIMER

- 1. This document is intended for the sole use of the Customer as detailed on the front page of this document to whom the document is addressed and who has entered into a written agreement with the DNV GL entity issuing this document ("DNV GL"). To the extent permitted by law, neither DNV GL nor any group company (the "Group") assumes any responsibility whether in contract, tort including without limitation negligence, or otherwise howsoever, to third parties (being persons other than the Customer), and no company in the Group other than DNV GL shall be liable for any loss or damage whatsoever suffered by virtue of any act, omission or default (whether arising by negligence or otherwise) by DNV GL, the Group or any of its or their servants, subcontractors or agents. This document must be read in its entirety and is subject to any assumptions and qualifications expressed therein as well as in any other relevant communications in connection with it. This document may contain detailed technical data which is intended for use only by persons possessing requisite expertise in its subject matter.
- 2. This document is protected by copyright and may only be reproduced and circulated in accordance with the Document Classification and associated conditions stipulated or referred to in this document and/or in DNV GL's written agreement with the Customer. No part of this document may be disclosed in any public offering memorandum, prospectus or stock exchange listing, circular or announcement without the express and prior written consent of DNV GL. A Document Classification permitting the Customer to redistribute this document shall not thereby imply that DNV GL has any liability to any recipient other than the Customer.
- 3. This document has been produced from information relating to dates and periods referred to in this document. This document does not imply that any information is not subject to change. Except and to the extent that checking or verification of information or data is expressly agreed within the written scope of its services, DNV GL shall not be responsible in any way in connection with erroneous information or data provided to it by the Customer or any third party, or for the effects of any such erroneous information or data whether or not contained or referred to in this document.
- 4. Any energy forecasts estimate or predictions are subject to factors not all of which are within the scope of the probability and uncertainties contained or referred to in this document and nothing in this document guarantees any particular energy output, including factors such as wind speed or irradiance.

KEY TO DOCUMENT CLASSIFICATION	KEY TO	DOCUMENT	<b>CLASSIFICATION</b>
--------------------------------	--------	----------	-----------------------

Strictly Confidential	:	For disclosure only to named individuals within the Customer's organization.
Private and Confidential	:	For disclosure only to individuals directly concerned with the subject matter of the document within the Customer's organization.
Commercial in Confidence	:	Not to be disclosed outside the Customer's organization.
DNV GL only	:	Not to be disclosed to non-DNV GL staff
Customer's Discretion	:	Distribution for information only at the discretion of the Customer (subject to the above Important Notice and Disclaimer and the terms of DNV GL's written agreement with the Customer).
Published	:	Available for information only to the general public (subject to the above Important Notice and Disclaimer).

Project name: Report title: Customer:	Bialy Bor and DK Wind Farmss Environmental and Social Management Plan Bialy Bor Farma Wiatrowa Sp. Z O.O. / DK Farma Wiatrowa Sp. Z O.O.	DNV GL Energy Renewables Advisory GL Garrad Hassan Ibérica S.L. Edificio El Trovador, 9D Plaza Antonio Beltrán Martinez, 1 50002 Zaragoza, Spain
Contact person:	Pedro Sánchez Rubal	Tel: +34 976201457
Date of issue:	18 September 2020	C.I.F nº B99159477
Project No.:	10203693	
Document No.:	10203693-ESZA-R-03-C-Draft	
Issue/Status	C/Final	

Task and objective:

This construction and operation phase Environmental and Social Management Plan has been compiled for the the Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm and Bialy Bor Wind Farm projects to be located in Pomerania, Poland.

Prepared by:

Claudia Pilas Project Analyst Environmental and Permitting Services

- □ Strictly Confidential
- $\hfill\square$  Private and Confidential
- $\Box$  Commercial in Confidence
- □ DNV GL only
- $\boxtimes$  Customer's Discretion
- $\Box$  Published

© 2020 Garrad Hassan Ibérica S.L.. All rights reserved.

Reference to part of this report which may lead to misinterpretation is not permissible.

Issue	Date	Reason for Issue	Prepared by	Verified by	Approved by
А	06 July 2020	First Draft Issue	Claudia Pilas	Frédéric Gagnon	Antonio Baiges
В	18 September 2020	Final Issue	Claudia Pilas	Frédéric Gagnon	Antonio Baiges
С	18 September 2020	Minor correction on final issue	Claudia Pilas	Frédéric Gagnon	Antonio Baiges

Verified by:

Gabriel Constantin Team Leader Environmental and Permitting Services

Approved by:

Antonio Baiges Head of Section Project Engineering Ibérica

Keywords: Environmental, Social, Management Plan, Wind, Poland

## Table of contents

1	OVERVIEW	. 5
	1.1 Structure of the ESMP	. 6
2	ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT PROGRAM	
	2.1 Environmental and Social Policy	
	2.2 Roles and Responsibilities	
	2.3 Training and Awareness	
	2.4 Incident, non-conformance and corrective action	
	2.5 Grievance Mechanism	
	2.6 Monitoring and Review	10
	2.7 Reporting	10
3	STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT	12
	3.1 Roles and Responsibilities	12
4	ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT PLAN	12
5	ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING PROGRAM	23
6	REFERENCES	25

# List of tables

Table 2-1 Roles and responsibilities of relevant personnel	8
Table 4-1 Environmental management plan for the Project	. 13

# List of abbreviations

Abbreviation	Meaning
DNRE	Department of Natural Resources and Environment
DNV GL	DNV GL Energy Renewables Advisory, GL Garrad Hassan Ibérica S.L.
EHS	Environmental, Health, and Safety
EIA	Environmental Impact Assessment
ED	Environmental Decision
EPC	Engineering Procurement and Construction
ESIA	Environmental & Social Impact Assessment
ESMP	Environmental and Social Management Plan
ESMS	Environmental and Social Management System
IFC	International Finance Corporation

# **1 OVERVIEW**

This Environmental and Social Management Plan (ESMP) has been completed for the Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm and Bialy Bor Wind Farm (the "Project") being planned by Ibereolica (the "Sponsors").

The Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm project to be located in Pomerania, Poland, which is planned to consist of 6 wind turbines of the model Vestas V126 3.45 MW and corresponding grid connection infrastructure, with a total installed capacity of 20.7 MW. The Bialy Bor Wind Farm Project to be located in Western Pomerania, Poland, which is planned to consist of 42 wind turbines of the model Vestas V126 3.45 MW and corresponding grid connection infrastructure, with a total installed capacity of 144.9 MW. The approximate distance between Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm and Bialy Bor Wind Farm is 50 km. The Project will include power production facilities (wind turbines) and auxiliary infrastructure, including access roads, transmission lines, substation, etc. Construction is planned to commence in the third quarter of 2020.

Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) reports [1][3] have been compiled as part of the EIA process to assess the environmental and social impacts associated with the construction, operation and decommissioning activities of the Project, and to ensure that the Project fulfills the requirements of Polish laws and regulations. An Environmental Decision (ED) was issued for the Biały Bór Wind Farm in November 2011 [4], and the Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm obtained its ED from the Mayor of Debnica Kaszubska in February 2015 [2]

The ESMP provides a set of guidelines and actions aimed at addressing potential environmental and social impacts associated with the construction and operation of the Project. The ESMP incorporates relevant mitigation measures from the EIAs, the conditions of the EDs, and additional management and mitigation actions that have been identified as necessary to implement the project in the manner that ensures that the Equator Principles and the International Finance Corporation's (IFC) Performance Standards are satisfied.

This ESMP describes and prioritizes the actions needed to implement mitigation, management, monitoring, and institutional measures to be taken during implementation to avoid adverse environmental and social impacts or reduce the impacts to acceptable levels. The ESMP also defines roles and responsibilities for its implementation. Separate environmental management plans will be developed for each phase of the Project development, and the key aspects are summarized in this report.

Finally, an Environmental and Social Management System (ESMS) will be established to provide a framework for integrating the ESMP. An ESMS in line with ISO 14001 is based on the principles of the Plan-Do-Check-Act cycle, which helps to assess and control risks on a continual improvement basis. The ESMP, as the one proposed, assures stakeholders that their requirements for the Project's environmental and social performance will be met as a continuous process that will be implemented to ensure that impacts are mitigated throughout the Project construction and operation.

# **1.1 Structure of the ESMP**

This ESMP is structured as follows:

Section	Heading	Content
Section 1	Overview	Background information regarding the proposed wind farms, EIA and management.
Section 2	Environmental and Social Management Program	Provides details of the environmental and social policy, responsibilities of key role players and ESMS elements to ensure continuous improvement.
Section 3	Stakeholder Engagement	This section outlines consultation activities already carried out and proposed and a further plan for ongoing engagement with stakeholders.
Section 4	Environmental and Social Management Plans	This section details the proposed specific plans and monitoring for the sites.

# 2 ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

## **2.1 Environmental and Social Policy**

The Sponsor is committed to undertaking the Project in an environmentally and socially responsible manner. The provisions of the ESMS will apply equally to all Project-related personnel (including contractor, subcontractors, suppliers and visitors) and will be required to perform tasks in a manner that prevents or mitigate environmental and social adverse impacts. The primary Project's objectives in this regards are:

- Complying with all applicable environmental, health and safety legislation;
- Implementing pollution prevention practices and international best practices;
- Engaging regularly with stakeholders regarding the implementation of the pProject; and
- Ensuring continual improvement by maintaining monitoring and reviewing this ESMS.

# 2.2 Roles and Responsibilities

The key role-players for the purposes of environmental and social management include but are not limited to:

#### **CONSTRUCTION:**

- Project Company;
- BOP Site Manager BOP Contractor selected person responsible for the construction site management. Its obligations are included in the BOP agreement as well as in the Polish Construction Law;
- BOP Contractor managers and workers executing the construction works;
- OE Site Manager person representing the Project Company and providing a general supervision of the construction works. Its obligation is also to coordinate the specialists and inspectors involved in the construction in line with the Onwer's Engineer Contract;
- OE Site Supervisors group of civil, electrical and H&S supervisors. Their obligations are related to
  detailed supervision of respective aspects of the construction works. The team of site supervisors will
  include the Statutory Inspectors as required by the Polish Construction Law;
- OE Environmental and Social Officers group of environmetnal specialists taking the full responsibility on the performance of the ESMP.

#### **OPERATION:**

- WTG O&M provider company responsible for the proper operation of the wind farm in terms of energy generation and meeting environmental standards by the wind turbines.
- BOP O&M provider company responsible for the proper operation of the project's infrastructure in terms of general performance and meeting environmental standards.
- Owner's Operations Team a group of specialists responsible for supervising the entire project at the operational stage.

Details of the responsibilities of key role players have been provided in Table 2-1.

Dentes	Table 2-1 Roles and responsibilities of relevant personnel
Party	Responsibilities
Project Company	<ul> <li>Obtain the relevant environmental permits, consents and authorizations prior to commencing site works,</li> <li>Ensure the implementation of the EIA and ESMP throughout the Project life cycle,</li> <li>Continuously seek to improve any adverse environmental impacts which result from the operational phase,</li> <li>Prepare and get approval for the ESIA report in which initiatives for preventing, eliminating and reducing potential impacts as well as corrective actions are proposed,</li> <li>Appoint responsible contractors who have the capacity to comply with the requirement prescribed in this ESIA,</li> <li>Ensure compliance with all applicable national requirements and IFC guidelines.</li> </ul>
BOP Site Manager	<ul> <li>Manage the site according to the conditions of the Environmental Authorization and ESMP,</li> <li>Prepare management plans and control strategies to ensure the Project commitments and obligations will be met during the various phases of the Project,</li> <li>Ensure no violation of national requirements and IFC guidelines,</li> <li>Ensure the necessary resources and processes are in place to implement the operation component of the ESMP.</li> </ul>
BOP Contractor	<ul> <li>Ensure the implementation of actions proposed in the ESIA and ESMP throughout the construction works by contractor personnel and subcontractors,</li> <li>Implement corrective and preventive actions where required,</li> <li>Update, implement, monitor and maintain the effectiveness of the ESMP,</li> <li>Training of contractor's personnel and training of subcontractors' personnel on meeting responsibilities with regard to applicable environmental legislation and international guidelines and the content of this ESMP.</li> </ul>
OE – Site Manager;	<ul> <li>Organiznig the project procedures in line with ESIA and ESMP throughout the construction works,</li> <li>Managing and coordinating the OE team,</li> <li>Monitoring the risks of construction phases and reporting,</li> <li>General supervisions on the project's completion, quality and HSE</li> </ul>
OE – Site Specialists;	<ul> <li>Supervision of the works in terms of compliance with the Building Permit's regulations, compliance with the Building Permit and Execution Design, work specifications, as well as acknowledged technical rules and binding regulations,</li> <li>Particpation in al all pre-acccptance tests, launches, reviews and surveys in order to confirm achieving assumed productivities and eficiencies of installations and systems,</li> <li>Supervision ensuring the safety and compliancy with fire safety, environment proception, work and safety regulations</li> </ul>
OE - Environmental and Social Officer.	<ul> <li>Monitor Project activities daily to ensure compliance with the ED and ESMP.</li> <li>Maintain a daily register of incidents and indicating how these incidents were addressed, and what preventive or remediation measures were implemented,</li> </ul>

#### Table 2-1 Roles and responsibilities of relevant personnel

Party	Responsibilities				
	• Implement a grievance mechanism, including keeping records of each grievance or complaint case and actions taken to resolve the situation,				
WTG O&M provider BOP O&M provider	<ul> <li>Regular checks of the project's infrastructure,</li> <li>Maintenance of the technical equipment installed in the wind farm,</li> <li>Providing the safe technology meeting the applicable environmental standards</li> </ul>				
Owner's Operations Team	<ul> <li>Supervision of the environmental specialists conducting the monitorings as required in the Environmental Decision,</li> <li>Reporging and proposing mitigation meausres in case the Project causes unexpected threat to the environment.</li> </ul>				

## **2.3 Training and Awareness**

To achieve effective environmental management, it is necessary that contractors be aware of the responsibilities in terms of applicable environmental legislation and international guidelines, and the content of this ESMP. The Project shall ensure that all personnel responsible for the implementation of this ESMP is competent on the basis of appropriate education, training or experience.

All employees and contractors involved in the Project construction are required to undertake a specific training program suitable for their level of involvement in the Project. The level of training will be decided upon the degree of risk exposure and the complexities of mitigation actions. More particular skills for performing measures proposed in the environmental management program will also be trained and strengthened in specialized staff. Specific training programs will be prepared prior to the start of Project activities.

Relevant Environmental, Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) training will be provided for new employees to ensure that they are adequately trained before commencing any work in the Project. The training will be complemented by recommendations related to COVID-19, issued by the Healthcare Authority. Additional training may be supplemented as required depending on the results of competency screening.

Training records will be retained at the Project office and reviewed to assess the training effectiveness as well as the competency of participants in developing the Project.

#### 2.4 Incident, non-conformance and corrective action

Regular inspection of action performance will be carried out to promptly detect potential incidents or nonconformances during the development and operation of the Project. Management at all levels will be responsible for investigating incidents and non-conformances in their respective areas and reporting to the Site Manager. Depending on the level of consequence, the local authority may be notified. All employees are empowered to stop working if they experience or observe unsafe working conditions or at-risk behaviour.

Major accidents and emergencies (e.g. chemical or hydrocarbon spill, fires) are addressed in the Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan, as described in Section 5.1.4.

An assessment of possible corrective and preventive actions is required when an incident occurs, a grievance or complaint is lodged, or non-conformances with the ESMS are identified. Any corrective or preventive action taken to eliminate the cause of actual or potential non-conformances will be commensurate to the nature and magnitude of the potential environmental and social impact. Corrective actions may result in changes to the ESMS.

# **2.5 Grievance Mechanism**

The purpose of this grievance mechanism is to ensure that grievances or concerns raised by local communities, landowners and other stakeholders are addressed in a transparent and consultative manner by the Project.

A dedicated team will be assigned as the contact person to receive and address all grievances and queries successfully.

All grievances or complaints relating to the Project construction and operation will be documented in a form. The Site Manager is responsible for maintaining a register of all complaints in the grievance register. Before responding to the complainant, an investigation will be conducted, and if necessary, corrective actions will be implemented. After resolution, the grievance must be formally closed out, documenting actions taken and closing out in the grievance register.

It is expected that key grievances received from stakeholders will mainly relate to:

- Compensation payment and support to land sellers;
- Health and safety issues related to environmental impacts on nearby residents; and
- Social issues resulting from construction activities.

As part of the ESMS monitoring and review, grievance indicators will be assessed to identify grievance process improvements.

# 2.6 Monitoring and Review

A monitoring program will be developed to ensure compliance with the Project's requirements. In the event that non-conformances with applicable standards are detected via monitoring programs, further investigation will be implemented along with corrective actions.

The Environmental and Social Officers are primarily responsible for implementing the monitoring program. Key details on location, parameters and frequency of the monitoring plan applied for each environmental and social component are provided in Section 4 below.

Results of monitoring programs will be reported periodically to the Site Manager to review the effectiveness of mitigation measures (See section 2.7.1). Based on these performance reviews, the Site Manager and Environmental and Social Officers will take the necessary and appropriate steps to ensure conformance.

# 2.7 Reporting

#### 2.7.1 Monitoring report

The results of the monitoring program will be reported periodically to the Sponsor for the effectiveness review of the mitigation measures. Relevant stakeholders, including lenders, government authorities, and the affected community, will be notified about the progress of the monitoring programs. An environmental and social monitoring report will be provided on the status of implementing the ESMP and compliance with applicable standards. The reporting frequency will be determined.

#### 2.7.2 Incident Reporting

Incident notification will be classified as non-routine reporting. Upon the occurrence of incidents associated with the Project's activities, the Site Manager will report related information to the Sponsor, including cause (if identified), consequence and response activities (if any). The Sponsor, in turn, will decide whether the incident must be reported to the regulatory authority and the Lender.

#### **3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT**

The Sponsor will develop a Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP) for the Project that provides an outline of objectives, key stakeholders and communication methods. It will include a community engagement plan to secure good relations with local communities during construction. The stakeholder engagement process includes stakeholder analysis and engagement planning. Stakeholders vary in terms of the degree of interest, influence and control they have over the Project. Stakeholder mapping helps in identifying the different stakeholders based on the degree of impact on the Project and by analyzing the interest each of them has in the Project and the manner in which both the stakeholder group and the Project can benefit from each other. Various stakeholders and agencies were engaged as part of the development and permit review process, including the Regional Environmental Director, the Mayor of Debnica Kaszubska, and aviation authority. The Biały Bór Commune was also contacted throughout the Project development. These stakeholder engagement activities are relevant and appropriate for a wind energy project located within this jurisdiction.

## 3.1 Roles and Responsibilities

A Social Officer will be assigned by the Project Company to coordinate engagement with Project stakeholders. The Social Officer is also responsible for ensuring that stakeholders, including local communities, are aware of Project's grievance mechanism. The Social Officer, in conjunction with the Site Manager, will release external communications regarding the Project. Communication includes updates on mitigation and management measures, community investment programs or initiatives, and progress regarding specific issues raised by the general public.

# 4 ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MANAGEMENT PLAN

The potential environmental and social impacts associated with the Project were identified and assessed during the Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) process. Project-specific environmental impacts associated with the construction, operation and decommissioning phases, and proposed mitigation measures are presented in the Table 4-1.

#### Table 4-1 Environmental management plan for the Project

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
Construction / De	commissioning phase						
	Land reclamation	Preventing the land reclamation after construction	<ul> <li>Removed soil layer will be stored in order to be used for land reclamation after the completion of construction</li> <li>Remove a layer of fertile soil with a thickness of approx. 20 cm and store it in heaps, up to approx. 1.5 m high and up to approx. 3 m wide, located outside construction sites.</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report
Land levelling	Surface water	Negative impact on surface water	<ul> <li>When crossing roads, drainage network elements and watercourses, use trenchless methods of laying cables in the ground (by means of controlled drilling or jacking), in agreement with the management, manager or owner of the facility;</li> <li>Protect the ground and water in work areas of the investment from pollution connected with the work of the mechanized equipment by taking care of the technical condition of the equipment, securing the places of temporary bases of the construction equipment (use impermeable surfaces) and eliminating possible repairs of the equipment outside these areas.</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	<ul> <li>Monitoring parameters:</li> <li>Roads, sewage network elements and watercourses along the route of the works</li> <li>Land on which construction work is carried out</li> <li>Frequency: Daily</li> </ul>	N/A	Monthly report
Operation of construction equipment	Noise protection	Negative impact on the surrounding area	<ul> <li>Construction work, which is a source of excessive noise, in the vicinity of acoustically protected areas will be carried out only during the daytime;</li> <li>Transport the excavated material from the excavations for the foundations and the construction materials and elements of the</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			<ul> <li>power plant outside the night hours (10 p.m 6 a.m.) with the exception of the transport of bulky items (elements of the power plant), which may be carried out during the night hours;</li> <li>Shut down machines and equipment during breaks (avoid idle operation).</li> </ul>				
			<ul> <li>A Waste Management Plan shall be established to ensure proper storage, management and disposal of waste in accordance with country's legislation and best management practices.</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Waste Management Plan	N/A	Prior to construction
Construction and installation of infrastructure	Pollution prevention	Pollution of the environment caused by construction waste	<ul> <li>Construction site shall be equipped with sorbents to enable efficient and effective removal of any oil contamination caused by leaks in mechanical equipment;</li> <li>Secure the excavation site against the possibility of contamination associated with construction work; no waste may be left in the excavation site;</li> <li>Shut down machines and equipment during breaks in operation (avoid idle operation);</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report
			<ul> <li>Store waste selectively in appropriate sealed, labelled containers, in places that are hardened and protected against weather conditions and access by unauthorised persons and ensure its regular collection by authorised companies;</li> <li>The sanitary needs of building crews and people on the construction site will be</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			secured by setting up portable lavatories with airtight sewage tanks and ensuring the collection of waste by specialized companies;				
	Birds protection	Negative impact on the birds population	<ul> <li>Works in forest areas and felling of trees and bushes will be carried out outside the period of breeding and rearing young birds (i.e. outside the period from 1 March to 31 August);</li> <li>The construction work will be carried out outside the breeding period of birds nesting on the ground or shrubs, i.e. outside the period from 1 March to 31 August, or the commencement of construction work related to the transformation of plant cover will be preceded by verification of information on the occurrence of nests by an ornithologist. If it is found that the birds are nesting, the works will be carried out after the birds have hatched;</li> <li>Do not create new green areas, especially those planted with high greenery</li> <li>Do not introduce new afforestation;</li> <li>Do not create new ponds</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer, Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report
	Bats protection	Negative impact on the bats population	<ul> <li>Do not create new green areas, especially those planted with high greenery</li> <li>Do not introduce new afforestation;</li> <li>Do not create new ponds;</li> <li>Do not plant trees and shrubs and remove spontaneous new bushes along the roads, which will reduce the frequency of bats appearing in the farm area;</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer, Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			<ul> <li>When felling trees forming avenues and rows, do not cut down more than 3 trees growing one after another. If more trees or old and hollow trees need to be felled, consult a chiropterologist;</li> </ul>				
	Trees protection	Negative impact on the trees around the site	<ul> <li>Secure roadside trees along the route, including in the area of exits of construction vehicles and transporting individual structural elements of the power plant from the existing roads to access roads, by covering tree trunks and proper vehicle manoeuvring;</li> <li>Use, in agreement with the nature supervision, a cover that does not touch the moulds of the lichen;</li> <li>To protect the root systems (trees and shrubs not planned to be felled directly adjacent to the building site, through the passageways of construction equipment), work must be carried out using micromachines or by hand;</li> <li>Do not store aggregate, cement, oils, fuels and other substances in a zone at least 10 m away from the tree trunks, and locate temporary yards outside the contour of the tree crown cast;</li> <li>Trees damaged during construction work shall be treated with care, including protection of damaged roots and resulting wounds;</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer, Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out • Trees outside the site area Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report
	Protection of small terrestrial animals	Negative impact on the small terrestrial animals	<ul> <li>Protect the excavations from small animals (reptiles, amphibians and small mammals) by means of temporary fences, nets or baffles. If nets are used, the mesh will be</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager	Monitoring parameters:	N/A	Monthly report

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			<ul> <li>no larger than 5 mm in diameter. Use enclosures at least 50 cm above ground level with the top edge curved towards the passing amphibians, buried at least 10 cm deep;</li> <li>Check pits regularly (daily) to ensure that there are no animals in them and, if found, move them into their proper habitat;</li> </ul>	Supervision: Owner's Engineer, Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	<ul> <li>Land on which construction work is carried out</li> <li>Trees outside the site area</li> </ul> Frequency: Daily		
	Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm - Specific requirements Highly sensitive and "no go" areas	Negative impact on protected species and their habitat	<ul> <li>During the construction works on the whole length of the planned cable line and access roads to the power plant no. 5 (located on the plot of land no. 228, 229, Dobieszewo district) and power plant no. 6 (located on the plot of land no. 252, 253, 214/1, 215/2, 215/1, Dobieszewo district) guarantee the nature supervision on a current basis controlling the conduct of the investment in the vicinity of natural habitats and habitats of protected species;</li> <li>The entrances/exits of the controlled drillings will be conducted at a distance of at least 10 m from the patches of natural habitats: 3150 old river beds and natural eutrophic water reservoirs with communities of Nympheion, Potamion, 4030 dry heathlands (Calluno - Genistion, Pohlio-Callunion, Calluno-Arctostaphylion), 6510 lowland and mountain fresh meadows with extensive use (Arrhenatherion elatioris), 91E0 willow, poplar, alder and ash riparian forests (Salicetum albo-fragilis, Populetum albae, Alnenion glutinoso-incanae) and spring alder. Store the excavated material directly in the vehicle body;</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer, Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out • Trees outside the site area Frequency: Daily	N/A	Monthly report

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
	Health and safety of site personnel	Negative impact on site personnel's health and safety	<ul> <li>A health and safety plan must be developed and implemented in accordance with the Polish Occupational Health and Safety regulations</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Health and Safety Plan	N/A	Prior to construction
	Traffic safety	Negative effects associated with the increase of vehicle traffic	<ul> <li>Develop a Traffic Management Plan that includes driver training, vehicle maintenance, speed restrictions, road safety signage, and other control measures.</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Traffic Management Plan	N/A	Prior to construction
	Socio-economic impact		<ul> <li>Develop a Stakeholder Engagement Plan indicating organizations or individuals that may be affected or have an interest in the Project and stakeholder engagement and disclosure activities, and stakeholder register.</li> </ul>	Implementation: Project Owner	Stakeholder Engagement Plan	N/A	Prior to construction
	Archaeological findings	Damage or destruction of objects of archaeological value	<ul> <li>Any archaeological findings should be properly secured and delivered to the authorities in line with the Polish regulations. Construction works in places of the findings must be coordinated in line with the applicable regulations.</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Monitoring parameters: • Land on which construction work is carried out Frequency: On each occurrence of the archaeological findings	N/A	On each occurrence of the archaeological findings
	Shadow Flicker	Negative impact on the neighbouring households	<ul> <li>Assessment of the shadow flicker effect and its impact on the nearby households.</li> </ul>	Implementation: Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	Monitoring parameters: • Wind farm neighbourhood	N/A	Prior to construction

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
				Supervision: Project Company			
	Labour and Working Conditions		<ul> <li>Adopting and implementing human resources policies and procedures appropriate to its size and workforce that set out its approach to managing workers consistent with the requirements of this Performance Standard and national law.</li> <li>Document and communicate to all employees' conditions and terms of employment.</li> <li>Practice non-discrimination and equal opportunity in making employment decisions</li> <li>Provide a mechanism for workers to raise workplace concerns.</li> <li>Provide workers with a safe and healthy work environment, taking into account risks inherent to the particular project sector</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP Contractor managed by the BOP Site Manager Supervision: Owner's Engineer	Health and Safety Plan and other relevant plans delivered by the BOP contractor	N/A	On demand
Operation phase							
Operation of the Project	WTG Maintenance	Technical failures	<ul> <li>Carry out a periodic check of the technical condition of the equipment in order to detect irregularities and prevent technical failures;</li> <li>Carry out maintenance work (gear and hydraulic oil changes) under favourable weather conditions (no precipitation) and, during the maintenance work, equip the area around the engine room with substances allowing for quick collection of possible accidental leaks;</li> <li>Carry out continuous monitoring of the operation of the power plant and its</li> </ul>	Implementation: WTG O&M provider Supervision: Owner's Operations Team	Site inspection Frequency: Monthly	N/A	Annually

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			associated equipment in order to reduce the risk of failure;				
	BOP Maintenance	Technical failures	<ul> <li>Carry out a periodic check of the technical condition of the equipment in order to detect irregularities and prevent technical failures;</li> <li>Carry out scheduled and unscheduled maintenance works;</li> <li>Carry out continuous monitoring of the Project's and its associated equipment in order to reduce the risk of failure;</li> </ul>	Implementation: BOP O&M provider Supervision: Owner's Operations Team	Site inspection Frequency: In line with the substation O&M contract	N/A	In line with the substation O&M contract
	Land protection	Land pollution and damages	<ul> <li>Any spills of hazardous substances which may occur during the operational phase shall be immediately eliminated;</li> <li>Decommission/dismantle wind power plants within 1 year of the end of their operation, in accordance with the legal provisions in force during the dismantling period. The land after the dismantled power plant is reclaimed;</li> <li>Waste generated in connection with maintenance works (in particular, containing oil-derivative substances) will be transferred for recovery or disposal to a consignee holding a relevant permit for its further management;</li> <li>Ensure access to spill neutralising sorbents for the time of oil change.</li> </ul>	Implementation: WTG O&M provider Supervision: Owner's Operations Team	Site inspection Frequency: Monthly	Incident/Accide nt event	Annually
	Noise protection	Noise pollution	<ul> <li>The noise protection mode of the individual turbines shall be such that the noise emitted by them does not exceed the permissible noise standards for protected areas;</li> </ul>	Implementation: WTG O&M provider Supervision: Owner's Operations	Site inspection Frequency: Monthly	N/A	Annually

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			<ul> <li>To meet the permissible noise levels in the environment in the protected areas in terms of acoustics, as specified in the applicable regulations, the acoustic power of the turbines at night must be limited to 104.5 dB for the level:</li> <li>WTG no. 4 (located on plot no. 244/1, Dobieszewo district)</li> <li>WTG no. 5 (located on plot 228, 229, Dobieszewo district);</li> <li>Operate the project in a manner that enables it to meet noise standards and in a manner that does not endanger human safety and health</li> </ul>	Team, Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company			
	Noise monitoring	Noise pollution	<ul> <li>A noise level measurement (including 24- hour measurements)</li> </ul>	Implementation: Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company Supervision: Owner's Operations Team	Noise measurement Frequency: • Within 3 months after start of operation	N/A	Post construction
	Bats protection	Negative impact on the bats population	<ul> <li>Carry out chiropterological monitoring under the supervision of a chiropterologist for 3 years from the date of commissioning</li> </ul>	Implementation: Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company Supervision: Owner's Operations Team	Post-construction bat mortality monitoring Frequency: In line with the Env. Permit	N/A	Annually
	Bats Protection	Negative impact on the birds population	• Carry out ornithological monitoring for a period of 5 years from the date of commissioning, repeating the survey three times (in 1, 2 and 3 years or in 1, 3 and 5	Implementation: Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company	Post-construction bird mortality monitoring Frequency: In line with the Env. Permit	N/A	Annually

Project Activities	Valued Environmental component	Potential Impacts	Mitigation Measures	Responsibility	Monitoring	Contingency	Reporting
			years of the farm's use), each time covering the annual observation cycle, covering the entire wind farm area	Supervision: Owner's Operations Team			
	Shadow Flicker	Negative impact on the neighbouring households	<ul> <li>Measurement of the shadow flicker effect and its impact on the nearby households.</li> <li>Confirmation of the pre-construction assessment</li> </ul>	Implementation: Environmental specialist hired by the Project Company Supervision: Owner's Operations Team	Monitoring parameters: • Wind farm's neighbourhood	N/A	Post construction

# **5 ENVIRONMENTAL MONITORING PROGRAM**

A monitoring program will be implemented through all Project phases, to ensure the effective implementation of the mitigation measures. A description of key environmental aspects including frequency, location and monitoring parameters have been provided in Table 4-1. Monitoring results will be collected and reviewed to examine the effectiveness of mitigation measures and determine whether there exist any non-conformances with applied standards.

As a critical component of this ESMP, several additional management plans have been developed to comply with the ED requirements or to avoid/minimize potential adverse environmental and social impacts. Each of these management plans includes specific monitoring and measurement process, and they are detailed as follows:

#### 5.1.1 Waste Management Plan

[To be completed by the appointed contractor prior to construction]

#### 5.1.2 Community and Stakeholder Engagement Plan

[To be completed by the Sponsor prior to construction]

#### 5.1.3 Health and Safety Plan

A Project-specific Health and Safety Management Plan will be developed to implement all requirements and safe work procedures required in connection with construction and operation activities on-site pursuant to the Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) regulations and standards (e.g. OSHAS 18001, ISO 45001).

Incidents/accidents will be investigated to identify the underlying causes and to put forward the most suitable measures to cope with the occurrence promptly. All aspects relevant to the issue will be reviewed, and a report of the investigation will be completed and sent to management and the appropriate authorities, as necessary.

Reports on incident/accident will include a conclusion on the type and level of damage and the causes of the incident/accident. The report will also propose measures and methods to avoid the reoccurrence of the same or similar problem.

Following the completion of the investigation and the finalization of the report, the Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan prepared to deal with incidents/accidents will be updated as necessary.

Records of health and safety issues will be collected throughout all Project phases and kept at the Site office. Biannually investigations will be conducted to review the number of incidents/accidents, its level of damage as well as determining underlying causes.

The investigation outcomes will facilitate the development of the management plan regarding the protection of workers/staff health from occupational accidents and illness.

#### 5.1.4 Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan

The Emergency Preparedness and Response Plan (EPRP) will be developed to address risks and to mitigate any adverse impacts associated with the occurrence of emergency incidents. Emergency risks to be discussed include:

- Spillage or leakages of hazardous material
- Fire on-site and/or neighbouring properties

Even though the Project is not classified as a hazardous material industrial under the Act of 27 April 2001 Environmental Protection Law, an incident may be caused by the release of hazardous material during storage, use, or transport. According to the Act of 27 April 2001 Environmental Protection Law, "Anyone who notices the occurrence of an accident is obliged to immediately notify the persons located in the danger zone and the organizational unit of the State Fire Service or the Police or the commune head, mayor or city mayor". Local government (Municipality) departments that may be involved in an emergency response include, but not limited to, fire, police, emergency medical services, industry. The EPRP will identify the Project personnel who will initiate the notification process and authorities to be notified during an emergency.

An assessment of the EPRP is required after an emergency event, and the lessons learned must be incorporated.

#### 5.1.5 Traffic Management Plan

[To be completed by the appointed contractor prior to construction]

#### **6 REFERENCES**

- [1] Proeko, "Raport o Oddziaływaniu na Środowisko Farmy Wiatrowej Dobieszewo z Przyłączem Kablowym SN i Abonencką Stacją Elektroenergetyczną SN/110 kV Planowaną w Sąsiedztwie GPZ Dębnica Kaszubska" – Environmental Impact Assessment Report for Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm Project, 21 March 2013.
- [2] Mayor of Debnica Kaszubska commune, "Decyzja o środowiskowych uwarunkowaniach" Environmental Decision for Debnica Kaszubska Wind Farm, issued on 10 February 2015
- [3] Proeko, "Raport o Oddziaływaniu na Środowisko Farmy Wiatrowej FW Biały Bór z Infrastrukturą Techniczną Part 1", dated on 7 June 2011.
- [4] Mayor of Bialy Bor commune, "Decyzja Burmistrza Białego Boru o środowiskowych uwarunkowaniach na realizację przedsięwzięcia" Environmental Decision, issued on 25 November 2011.

#### **ABOUT DNV GL**

Driven by our purpose of safeguarding life, property and the environment, DNV GL enables organizations to advance the safety and sustainability of their business. We provide classification and technical assurance along with software and independent expert advisory services to the maritime, oil and gas, and energy industries. We also provide certification services to customers across a wide range of industries. Operating in more than 100 countries, our 16,000 professionals are dedicated to helping our customers make the world safer, smarter, and greener.